

Port of Illahee Minutes of Regular Meeting May 12, 2021

Due to the COVID-19 Virus and Governor Inslee's Proclamation 20-05 the meeting was being held virtually through the ZOOM app (meeting id# 71509975823 / Password: Illahee). Notice of the virtual meeting was posted near the kiosk at the head of the pier and on the Port's website – portofillahee.com.

CALL TO ORDER

Commission Chairman James Aho called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. Also, in attendance were Commissioner Jonathan Buesch; Commissioner John Burton; John Piccone with Soundwest Engineering; John Parvis; and Lee Knapp of TIKAR Services. Roy Barton joined the meeting later during the grant status presentation. Administrator Theresa Haaland was excused for personal reasons.

CONSENT AGENDA

Commissioner Buesch moved to approve the consent agenda items: May Meeting Agenda; April 14, 2021 Regular Meeting minutes; Quarterly Kitsap All Ports Meeting April 26, 2021; May 12, 2021 checks numbering 4740 through 4749 totaling \$2,467.13 as outlined in the attached Voucher Approval; second by Commissioner Burton; approved unanimously.

SIGNING OF DOCUMENTS

Commissioners agreed to individually stop by the Port of Silverdale office by Friday afternoon to sign documents.

PUBLIC COMMENT – None.

REPORTS/UNFINISHED BUSINESS

<u>Grants/Waterfront Access Improvements</u> – John Piccone with Soundwest Engineering provided the following update on the grants:

Design & Construction Status

• The 60% design was completed early this year. The following comments were made and will be considered and potentially included when we are ready to move to the final design of the project in preparation for bidding.

o Incorporate replacement of bad pier piles into the project to the extent feasible (see additional comment related to mitigation below)

o Incorporate a larger viewing area between the upper and lower parking lots to the extent feasible

o During final design of the vault restroom, consider the design used by parks department (Jim to clarify the one he saw)

o Consider how the store renovation, and in particular the associated site improvements, will be incorporated and/or included in the final design and overall project.

• Following final grant funding agreements, budgeting, and permit submittals we will be ready to start discussing the details around final design and bidding. At present, the goal is to be construction ready in 2022 pending permitting of the project.

Permitting & Regulatory Status

• We are well underway and nearing completion of the environmental reports necessary for permit applications for the County SSDP and USACE



Nationwide 3 permit. Once complete, I will be sure the Port has an opportunity to review them if desired prior to submittal.

o Based on our preliminary calculations it appears to be a "close call" on having enough onsite mitigation. I anticipate this will further reinforce the need to replace bad piles on the pier as part of this project because that will gain the project significant "mitigation points".

• The engineered drainage report and geotechnical report (both also needed for permits) have now been completed in draft form and once all reports are complete, I will be checking them for consistency prior to submittal.

• We will also want to address the necessary submittal information for the DNR lease request once the County and USACE submittal reports are complete and JARPA is ready to submit.

• As a reminder, the Kitsap County SSDP, USACE, and DNR approvals are anticipated to be the long lead items. We anticipate being ready to submit those applications in June.

Grants & Funding Status

• The applicant rankings and approved budgets have now been published. Although we are still waiting for final award decisions from RCO it appears Illahee is likely to receive awards for both the BFP and ALEA grants. So that's \$1.35M in grant funds (RCO's share) we should have to work with!!

• We did also receive a lot of positive feedback on the WWRP grant however, there were so many acquisition projects (which are funded first) it is unlikely we will receive additional WWRP money. • As soon as we have the official word from RCO, Jim and I will be scheduling a budgeting workshop to review matching funds required in context with project costs. At this stage we will be able to get a much better picture of Port funds that should be budgeted, and we can also discuss project priorities and bidding strategies to maximize benefit to the Port. Keep in mind that we won't ultimately know the construction costs until the project is bid, but this step will add significant clarity.

Upcoming Milestones and Recommended Action Items

• We will be continuing forward with preparation of the phase 1 permit submittal and provide copies prior to agency submission. Once the biological and mitigation reports are 95% complete, we may need to discuss the Port's preferences for offering compensatory mitigation prior to finalizing reports.

• Anticipated in late May or Early June, we will schedule a budgeting workshop based on RCO grants awarded and then plan to present options and considerations to the Board following the workshop. The workshop and follow-on Board direction will inform the Port's project budgeting process prior to fall of 2021.

• Once we've solidified the budgeting considerations for the water access project, we will be able to consider the budgeting aspects associated with the store renovation and to what extent it should be included with the water access project and phase 2 permits.

• With the preliminary budget and project scope refined we can discuss in greater detail the planned project schedule and approach to final design and development of bid documents while we wait for



Port of Illahee – Minutes of Regular Meeting on May 12, 2021

permits. As soon as grant agreements are in place (which we anticipate being summer of 2021) the Port can begin receiving reimbursements for prior engineering as well as development of final design and bid documents (which can be added back into available funding for future project match requirements).

Commissioner Aho discussed trying to pursue a mitigation credit for the Port's time, effort and money that was utilized towards the grant for the Illahee Creek Watershed Report/Surface Water Management Plan (SWMP) years ago. Commissioner Aho said that he will try to write something up at some point, but it is a struggle because he is unaware of this ever being done before so there is nothing to go by and any review normally just outlines the degradation of a site, not any improvements.

Commissioner Aho asked about the Geotech report with Mr. Piccone noting it will cover slope issues, retaining walls, and presumptive assumptions regarding the pilings. Commissioner Aho again noted he hoped that the Port could receive some type of mitigation credits due to their proactive efforts to decrease sedimentation in the basin years ago, with Mr. Piccone noting that they rarely look back on previous actions, only with what is before them regarding mitigation.

Treasurer's Report

Commissioner Aho noted the Treasure's Report from the agenda that as of April 30, 2021 the General Fund totaled \$54,525.38, Investments totaled \$286,714.06 and the balance of the Good Property Management account totaled \$200.00.

Commissioners' Reports

<u>Website</u> – Commissioner Aho said that he is still aware of the need to add a link to the Surface Water Management Plan (SWMP) as well as the mussel sampling results. He continues to add the Port's Agenda Packets to the website prior to the meeting in an effort to allow those planning to attend a chance to review.

Rental Properties

5560 Ocean View Boulevard/Rental Property – Commissioner Buesch reported that Dave's Septic Design had a meeting with County personnel at the Ocean View property to view the site and discuss the possibility of adding a reserve drain field to the property instead of on the nearby Illahee Road lot. Commissioner Buesch has several calls in to find out the result of the meetings but had not heard back by the time of tonight's meeting.

5500 Illahee Road/Rental Property – Commissioner Buesch noted nothing new to report on this property.

5507 Illahee Road/Illahee Store Property – Commissioner Buesch thanked John Parvis for mowing and keeping up the grounds at the store property. He also noted the weaving of blackberry vines into the hole in the fence continue to work.

Commissioner Buesch again reported that he talked with Ken Bagwell about the outstanding taxes showed owing on the tax statement. According to Mr. Bagwell it appears everything is complete and he has asked the County to confirm.

<u>Dock/Pier</u> – Commissioner Burton said that there hadn't been a lot of work on the dock this past

Page 3



Port of Illahee – Minutes of Regular Meeting on May 12, 2021

month. He has met with the sign maker at the facility and discussed where each sign is to be placed. He expects the signs to be posted by the next meeting. Lee said that he has not been to Illahee this past month, so nothing has been done with the deck boards yet. Commissioner Burton said that one of the lights was damaged some time ago from people using it to climb up on to jump into the water. It is just one of the motion-sensor lights. Lee was tasked with fixing it and noted that he will be working on it soon.

Commissioner Burton explained that he has replaced the flag and is looking for some better snaps that will handle ½ inch rope. Commissioner Buesch said that he might have some and will check.

NEW BUSINESS

<u>None.</u>

(Note that the two items listed on the agenda for this meeting, Budget and Annual Report, will be presented and discussed at the next Regular Port meeting on Wednesday, June 9, 2021, due to the absence of Administrator Haaland at the May 12th meeting.)

PUBLIC COMMENT

Roy Barton raised the question of what the impact would be if the funds were not expended before they expired. It was explained the funding can be extended beyond the end date, such as might be the case with delayed permitting.

EXECUTIVE SESSION - None.

ADJOURN

At 7:30PM Commissioner Buesch moved to adjourn the meeting; second by Commissioner Burton; approved unanimously.

Approved:

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

VOUCHER APPROVAL We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of the Port of Illahee, Kitsap County, Washington, do hereby certify that the merchandise and/or services hereinafter specified have been received and that the vouchers listed below are approved for payment in the amount of \$2,467.13 and from the General Fund, this 12th day of May, 2021 Port Auditor Port Commission Commissioner Number Name Amount 4740 384.00 JAMES AHO 384.00 4741 JONATHAN BUESCH 4742 JOHN BURTON 384.00 4743 CASCADE NATURAL GAS 5.00 4744 HONEY BUCKET 93.00 4745 107.92 PUGET SOUND ENERGY 4746 WASTE MANAGEMENT 99.21 4747 BREMERTON BACKFLOW SERVICES 90.00 4748 KENNETH W. BAGWELL, INC., P.S. 100.00 4749 THERESA HAALAND 820.00